**COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU** 



3) How Speaker arm.

SECOND ASSEMBLY

FIRST SESSION

REPORT OF SECTORAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC SERVICE ON:

PETITION TO THE COUNTY ASSEMBLY FOR ENANCTMENT OF VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION UNITS LEGISLATION

Clerk's Office

Colling Street out County Assembly of Embu

P. O Box 140-60100

November, 2018

**EMBU** 

### **Table of Contents**

ABBREVIATIONS	
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY	4
1.0 BACKGROUND	5
1.0.1 Petition by Mr. Taratisio Ireri Kawe, a resident of Embu County	5
1.0.2 Petitioner's Prayer	8
1.0.3 The Legal Framework	9
1.1. MANDATE OF THE COMMITTEE	10
1.2 MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE	11
1.3 PROBLEM STATEMENT	11
1.4 OBJECTIVES/TERMS OF REFERENCE	11
1.5 METHODOLOGY	11
1.6 TOOLS OF REFERENCE	12
1. 7 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT	12
2.0 SUBMISSIONS ON THE PETITION	13
2.1 Submission by CEC Member, Administration and Public Service	13
3.0 COMMITTEE'S FINDINGS AND OBSERVATIONS	
4.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS	16
5.0 CONCLUSION	17

### **ABBREVIATIONS**

C.O.K Constitution of Kenya, 2010

C.G.A County Governments Act, 2012

C.E.C.M County Executive Committee Member

M.C.A Member of County Assembly

#### **EXECUTIVE SUMMARY**

Pursuant to **Standing Order 204** of the County Assembly of Embu Standing Orders, the Committee on Administration and Public Service was tasked to look into the petition presented by Taratisio Ireri Kawe which was read on 4th October, 2018 and subsequently committed to the Committee.

The Committee according to the Standing Orders No. 217 had a period of not more than forty five calendar days to respond to the Petitioner and lay the report on the table of the Assembly.

Section 15 of the County Governments Act 2012 provides that a person has a right to petition a County Assembly to consider any matter within its authority, including enacting, amending or repealing any of its legislation. The Committee interrogated the issues raised in the petition which were purely legislative. The Committee further invited the CEC Member for Public Service and Administration to shed light on the issues and observed that the department of Public Service and Administration had formulated a legislative proposal on village administration which was awaiting cabinet approval. The committee recommended that the CEC Member fast tract the process and ensures that public participation is carried out before the legislative proposal is submitted to the County Assembly.

In dealing with the matter, the committee held several meetings to deliberate on the matter.

Upon deliberating in the said sittings and interrogating the documents submitted to it, the committee came up with a report in response to the petition as provided for under the **Standing**Order 217 (2)

#### 1.0 BACKGROUND

#### 1.0.1 Petition by Mr. Taratisio Ireri Kawe, a resident of Embu County

At the outset, it has to be pointed out that the members of the public have a right to petition the County Assembly. Section 15 (1) of the County Governments Act, provides that a person has a right to petition a county Assembly to consider any matter within its authority, including enacting, amending or repealing any of its legislation.

On 13th July 2018, the Office of the Clerk received a petition from Mr. Taratisio Ireri Kawe on enactment of Village Administration Units legislation. The Petition was read in the County Assembly on 4th October, 2018 and subsequently committed to the Committee on Administration and Public Service.

In dealing with the matter, the committee held several meetings to deliberate on the matter. The committee was able to engage the CEC Member Administration and Public Service to provide information on the issues raised.

In his petition, Mr. Taratisio Ireri Kawe, a resident of Embu County drew the attention of the County Assembly to the following;

- THAT this petition is of National importance and it touches on security, development and livelihood of all resident of Embu County.
- 2. THAT, the County Assembly takes note of Article 176 of the Constitution of Kenya 2010 and sections 45,50,51 of the County Governments Act 2012.
- 3. THAT, Section 52(1) of the County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012 recognizes the establishment of the office of village administrators for each Village Unit established in a County.

- 4. THAT, the County Assembly takes note that the County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012 section 53 states clearly the establishment of village council for each village unit and its functions is very well spelt therein.
- 5. THAT, proposed legislation will guide on determination on the number of the village units as enshrined under article 89 of the Constitution and **Section 26(d)** of the County Governments Act 2012.
- THAT, when enacted, legislation will give guideline on the recruitment and deployment
  of village administrators and village council members as well as the determination of the
  village administrative boundaries.
- 7. THAT, there is an existing demotivated team of village elders who offer voluntary services and who are directly responsible to the assistant chiefs under the National Government system and that the formation of mentioned team is not backed by the current Kenyan Constitution.
- 8. THAT, Section 52(3) of the County Governments Act 17 of 2012 states that the role and responsibilities of a village administrator as coordination, management and supervision as the general administrative functions in the village as provided in paragraph 14 part 11 of the Fourth Schedule to the Constitution and which includes; and not limited to the following:
  - i. ensuring and coordinating the participation of the village unit in governance and
  - ii. assisting the village unit to develop the administrative capacity for the effective exercise of the functions and powers and participation in governance at the local level; (b) the exercise of any functions and powers delegated by the county public service board under Section 86(4) in carrying out the functions and obligations in sub-section (3), a village administrator shall be responsible to the relevant ward administrator.
- THAT, the Assembly takes note that under the current arrangement, there is a vacuum
  in the County Administrative structure thus limiting the services to the resident of
  Embu County.

- 10. THAT, Section 53(1) of the County Government Act No. 17 of 2012 provides for the establishment of a village council and under Section 53(1) (a) and 53 (1) (b) of the same act provides the leadership and the membership of the said council while Section 53 sub section 2 (a) to (e) spells out the responsibilities of the village council as follows:
  - a) ensuring and coordinating the participation of the village unit in governance;
  - b) assisting the village unit to develop the administrative capacity for the effective exercise of the functions and powers and participation in governance at the local level;
  - c) monitoring the implementation of policies at the village unit;
  - d) advising the ward administrator and sub-county administrator on matters pertaining to the village; and
  - e) any other function necessary for the better administration of the village unit.
  - 11. THAT, in its consideration, the Assembly will take note of Section 53 (3) of the County Governments Act 17 of 2012 which guides on eligibility of a person to be considered for appointment as a village elder if the person as follows:
    - a) is a citizen of Kenya;
    - b) has been a resident of or has been the owner of property in the respective village unit for a continuous period of not less than five years prior to the appointment date;
    - c) meets the requirements of Chapter Six of the Constitution; and d)is not disqualified for appointment to office by this Act or any other law.
  - 12. THAT, the Assembly will take note of the fact that to the village council members requires to be motivated so as to actively engage on their responsibilities as per the Act and such allowances will be determined by the Assembly as provided in **Section 52(4)** of the County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012 which states "a village elder shall be paid such allowance as shall be determined by the respective County Assembly"

13. THAT, Embu County does not have legal authority or legislative framework to provide, govern the village administrative systems as spelt out in our constitution and County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012.

14. THAT there is no other authority other than the Embu County Assembly which by law is mandated to review and enact legislations proposed in this petition leaving the petitioner with no other option but petition directly to this Assembly.

15. THAT the subject matter of the petition is within the authority of County Government schedule 4 part 2 of the Constitution.

16 THAT, neither the County Government nor any other body has undertaken any move to address the issues raised in this petition and that there is no other similar petition pending in any court of law, Constitutional or legal body.

#### 1.0.2 Petitioner's Prayer

THAT, the County Assembly enacts a Village Administrative Units Act for effective and efficient administration and development to the lowest level of governance as enshrined under the County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012 and the Constitution of Kenya 2010.

#### 1.0.3 The Legal Framework

The legal framework for petitioning public bodies exists as follows:-

#### Petitions

The right of citizens to petition public authorities is enshrined in the Constitution of Kenya, 2010. **Article 37** provides that;

"Every person has a right, peaceably and unarmed, to assemble, to demonstrate, to picket and to present petitions to public authorities"

**Section 88** of the County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012 provides for citizens right to petition and challenge.

The said section provides that;

(1) Citizens have a right to petition the county government on any matter under the responsibility of the county government.

(2) Citizen petitions shall be made in writing to the county government.

(3) County legislation shall give further effect to section 88 (1).

The Act in **Section 89** further obligates the County Government authorities, agencies and agents to respond expeditiously to petitions and challenges from citizens.

Further, **Section 15 (1),** County Governments Act No. 17 of 2012, provides that a person has a right to petition a County Assembly to consider any matter within its authority, including enacting, amending or repealing any of its legislation.

The Standing Order 217 (1) provides that every Petition presented or reported pursuant to this Part, shall stand committed to the relevant Sectoral Committee.

Standing Order 217(2) further provides that whenever a Petition is committed to a Sectoral Committee, the Committee shall, in not more than forty five calendar days from the time of reading the prayer, respond to the petitioner by way of a report addressed to the petitioner or petitioners and laid on the Table of the County Assembly and no debate on or in relation to the report shall be allowed, but the Speaker may, in exceptional circumstances, allow comments or observations in relation to the Petitions for not more than twenty Minutes.

#### 1.1. MANDATE OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee on Administration and Public Service is one of the Sectoral Committees established under **Standing Order No. 204 (1)** of the County Assembly of Embu. The committee was established through a resolution of the County Assembly on 19th September 2017.

The mandate of the committee is clearly spelt out by the provisions of **Standing Order No. 204 (5)** which defines among the functions of the committee as being;

- (a) To investigate, inquire into, and report on all matters relating to the mandate, management, activities, administration, operations and estimates of the department,
- (b) To study the program and policy objectives of the Department and the effectiveness of the implementation,
- (c) To study and review all County legislation referred to it,
- (d) To study, assess and analyze the relative success of the Department as measured by the results obtained as compared with their stated objectives,
- (e) To investigate and inquire into all matters relating to the Department as it may deem necessary, and as may be referred to it by the County Assembly,
- (f) To vet and report on all appointments where the Constitution or any law requires the County

  Assembly to approve, except those under **Standing Order 198** (Committee on Appointments);
  and
- (g) To make reports and recommendations to the County Assembly as often as possible, including recommendation of proposed legislation.

### 1.2 MEMBERSHIP OF THE COMMITTEE

The Committee on Administration and Public Service is composed of the following members;

Hon. Duncan Ireri Mbui, MCA - Chairperson

Hon. Sicily Ruguru Njiru, MCA - Vice Chairperson

Hon. Michael Njeru Kariuki, MCA - Member

Hon. Martin Mwangi Kimani MCA - Member

Hon. Agnes Wanjiru Gakungugu, MCA - Member

Hon. Murithi Njagi Kiura, MCA - Member

Hon. Masters Leonard Mwaniki, MCA - Member

#### 1.3 PROBLEM STATEMENT

The report arose from a petition by Mr. Taratisio Ireri Kawe who petitioned the County Assembly for enactment of village administration Units legislation.

#### 1.4 OBJECTIVES/TERMS OF REFERENCE

- 1) To consider and scrutinize the petition for enactment of a village administration units legislation as tabled.
- 2) To make a report to the county Assembly addressed to the petitioners as per Standing Order No. 217.

#### 1.5 METHODOLOGY

- 1. Invitation of the CEC Member, Administration and Public Service
- 2. Scrutiny of the relevant statutory instruments.

#### 1.6 TOOLS OF REFERENCE

The following tools of reference were used in this report;

- 1. Constitution of Kenya, 2010.
- 2. County Assembly of Embu Standing Orders, (2nd Edition)
- 3. County Governments Act, No 17 of 2012
- 4. Submissions by the CEC Member Administration and Public Service.

#### 1. 7 ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

The Committee wishes to thank the Office of the Speaker and the Office of the Clerk for the support accorded to it during report writing and the execution of the committee's mandate.

The committee wishes also to appreciate all participants for the work done before, during, and after the consideration of the petition.

It is therefore my pleasant duty and privilege on behalf of the Administration committee to table this report for consideration.

GN------ DAT

HON. DUNCAN IRERI MBUI

**CHAIRPERSON** 

COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC SERVICE

## 2.0 SUBMISSIONS ON THE PETITION

In addressing itself to the issues raised by the petitioner, the committee resolved the following;

- To Request for information from the CEC Member, Administration and Public Service regarding the matter.
- 2. To Invite the CEC member Administration and Public Service to respond on the issues raised.

## 2.1 Submission by CEC Member, Administration and Public Service

The Committee through the Office of the Clerk of the Assembly Vide a letter dated 25<sup>th</sup> October, 2018 Ref No. CAE/LEG/10/VOL.XIV/68 wrote to the CEC Member Administration and Public Service to provide information regarding the prayer by the petitioner, the CEC responded on 1<sup>st</sup> November, 2018 as follows:-

- (a) That the department acknowledges the County Assembly's mandate in legislating on matters affecting the County at large.
- (b) That enactment of the said legislation will occasion additional expenditure of public funds.
- (c) That currently the County Government's wage bill stands at 67% as opposed to the regulated 37%.
- (d) That establishment of village Administrators offices and village Councils as at now is untenable due to budgetary constraints however with time as the County budget improves and funds are available the matter may be revisited.

The CEC Member further appeared in person before the Committee on 16th November, 2018 and submitted as follows:-

- a) THAT the department has formulated a legislative proposal on village administration for onwards transmission to the Cabinet.
- b) THAT the legislative proposal proposes that the existing sub locations to be delineated as village units and makes provisions for qualifications of all the officers to be employed under the Act once it is passed.
- c) THAT the Committee grants him more time and await the submission of the legislative proposal to the County Assembly once it is approved by the Cabinet as the process is already underway.
- d) THAT approximately 500 County Government staff will be retiring in the next 3 years which will scale down the County wage bill.

## 3.0 COMMITTEE'S FINDINGS AND OBSERVATIONS

Upon interrogating and considering all submissions and relevant documents concerning the petition, the committee made the following observations;

- 1. THAT, the issues raised by the petitioner are purely legislative and are well spelt out in the Constitution of Kenya, 2010 and in the County Governments Act, 2012.
- 2. THAT, the Department of Public Service and Administration has formulated a legislative proposal on Village Administration Units for onwards transmission to the Cabinet. (annexed)
- 3. THAT, the County Government's wage bill currently stands at 67% as opposed to the regulated 37% but, there was need for the CEC Member to provide a fiscal note to back this.
- 4. THAT the establishment of Village Administration Units and Village Councils is untenable as at now due to budgetary constraints.

# 4.0 COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS

After consideration of the committee's observations, the committee came up with the following recommendations:

- 1. THAT, the CEC Member for Public Service and Administration develops and submits a policy to the County Assembly to guide on County Administration.
- 2. THAT, the CEC Member for Public Service and Administration fast-track the process of submitting the legislative proposal on village administration units, delineation of boundaries and operationalization of the same to the County Assembly.
  - 3. THAT, the CEC Member for Public Service and Administration ensures public participation on the legislative proposal on village administration is carried out before submitting to the County Assembly.
  - 4. THAT, following the enactment of the Village Administration Units Act; the CEC Member establish the offices subject to availability of funds and keeping in line with the recommended 37% of the County Government wage Bill.

#### 5.0 CONCLUSION

On behalf of the Committee on Administration and Public Service I hereby urge this honorable House to adopt this petition report and the recommendations herein.

The recommendations of this petition report were agreed upon by the Members without any dissenting opinion.

NAME	POS	SITION	SIGNATURE
Hon. Sicily Ruguru Njiru, MCA	-	Vice chairperson	Squy
Hon. Michael Njeru Kariuki, MCA	-	Member	Delle
Hon. Martin Mwangi Kimani, MCA	=	Member	
Hon. Agnes Wanjiru Gakungugu, MCA	_	Member	(M) ++ : 0
Hon. Murithi Njagi Kiura, MCA	-	Member	
Hon Masters Leonard Mwaniki, MCA	-	Member	Ammunut!
Annua	1		
Signed	5		Date  8 11/2018

HON. DUNCAN IRERI MBUI, MCA

**CHAIRPERSON** 

COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC SERVICE

ANNEXUPE

Embu County Village Administration Bill, 2018

## EMBU COUNTY VILLAGE ADMINISTRATION BILL, 2018 ARRANGEMENT OF SECTIONS

#### PART I - PRELIMINARY

#### Section

- 1. Short title.
- 2. Interpretation.
- 3. Application

### PART II -ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF VILLAGES

- 4. Establishment of village units in Embu County
- 5. Office of the Village Administrator
- 6. Functions of the Village Administrator.
- 7. Powers of village administrator
- 8. Responsibility
- 9. Remuneration
- 10, Cessation of office
- 11. Village council
- 12. Qualifications of council member
- 13. Functions of the Council
- 14.Remuneration of council members

#### PART III- MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS

- 15. Meeting of the council
- 16:Regulations

9. Sh == -

1000

12

13.1

4176

6. E

4,511

7. 34. 401.

111

13,

14:

1

#### A Bill for

AN ACT of Embu County Assembly to provide for the effective coordination, management and supervision of the general administrative functions in the villages; and for connected purposes.

### ENACTED by the Embu County Assembly as follows-

#### PART I -PRELIMINARY

Short title

1. This Act may be cited as the Embu County Village Administration Act, 2018 and shall come into operation upon publication in Kenya gazette.

Interpretation

2. In this Act, unless the context otherwise

requires---

"citizen" means the resident of Embu County or the rate payer of a particular town in the County;

"county" means the County of Embu;

"county assembly" means county assembly of Embu;

"county government" means Embu County government;

"public service board" means the county body established under sections 57 and 58 of the County Governments Act, 2012;

"sub-county administrator" means the person responsible for coordination and administration of county affairs in any one of the sub-counties in Embu County;

"village" means the county's smallest administrative unit;

"village administrator" means the person responsible for overall coordination and management of county affairs in a particular village in the county;

"village council" means the council established under section 53(1) of The County Governments Act, 2012; and

"ward administrator" means the person responsible for overall coordination and management of county affairs in a particular ward in Embu County;

Application

3. The provisions of this Act are in addition to and not in derogation of the County Governments Act, 2012.

## PART II -ESTABLISHMENT AND ADMINISTRATION OF VILLAGES

Establishment of Village units 4. (1) There shall be established in Embu County 124 villages for proper co-ordination and facilitation of citizen participation in the development of policies and plans and delivery of services as provided for under the Schedule.

(2)In formulating the villages, the Embu County Government will

Embu County Village Administration Bill, 2018 take cognizance of the following considerations----

- (i) the vastness of the area;
- (ii) the demographic trends (population);
- (iii) geographical characteristics;
- (iv) historical disadvantages and the communities of interest;
- (v) cost implications;
- (vi) economic and cultural ties; and
- (vii) means of communication

Office of the village administrator

- **5.** (1) There shall be established the office of the village administrator for each established village in Embu County.
  - (2)The village administrator shall possess professional and technical qualifications, and shall be appointed by Embu County Public Service Board in accordance with the County Government Act 2012.
  - (3) No person shall be appointed as a Village Administrator unless such person:
    - (a) meets the requirements of Chapter Six of the Constitution;
    - (b) has attained a post-secondary education;
    - (c) has technical knowledge and experience in administration.
    - (d) is a resident of Embu County.
  - **6.** The Village administrator shall be responsible to the respective Ward Administrator and shall be responsible for the following---
    - (i) coordinating, managing and supervising the general administrative functions in the village;
    - (ii) facilitating development of policies and plans;
    - (iii) ensuring effective service delivery;
    - (iv) coordinating development activities to empower the community;
    - (v) providing and maintaining infrastructure and facilities for effective public service;
    - (vi) Communicating and disseminating all County information and County Government Policy to village residents;
    - (vii) Verifying in building plan approvals in the village;
    - (viii) Co-ordinate inter village governance, response and the representation of Sub – County or County Government at the village level;
    - (ix) Co ordinate the management of the community centres;
    - (x) Map out public utility supply and use;
    - (xi) Be custodian of all village data and statistical information including but not limited to population,

Functions of the Village Administrator

Office

Pilicis Whigh Admin

orine Hileli Willip Admin Embu County Village Administration Bill, 2018
general demographics, social amenities and facilities,
state of roads, agriculture and livestock production,
culture and heritage;

- (xii) Supervise installation, repair, improvement, maintenance and service of all public village utilities including but not limited to roads, feeder roads, bridges, drains, ditches, culverts, streams and water courses and rivers;
- (xiii) Be a symbol of the village unity;
- (xiv) Report on public utility neglect, wastage, repair, loss, misuse, abuse and or pollution;
- (xv) exercising any functions and powers delegated by the County Public Service Board under section 86 of the County Governments Act, 2012.
- 7. Any Village Administrator may from time to time issue orders to be obeyed by the persons residing or being within the local limits of his or her jurisdiction for any of the following purposes
  - (i) prohibiting or restricting the consumption or possession of intoxicating liquor by, and the supply of such liquor to persons under eighteen years;
  - (ii) preventing the pollution of the water in any stream, watercourse or water-hole, and preventing the obstruction of any stream or watercourse;
  - (iii) prohibiting or restricting the holding of drinking bouts;
  - (iv) regulating the cutting of timber and prohibiting the wasteful destruction of trees;
  - (v) prohibiting any act or thing which may cause damage to any public road or to any work constructed or maintained for the benefit of the community;
  - (vi) for any other purpose authorized by this Act.

Responsibility

Powers of the

Administrators

Village

1 131

8. In carrying out the functions and obligations above, a Village Administrator shall be responsible to the relevant Ward Administrator

Remuneration

- 9. The Village Administrator shall be paid such remuneration as it shall be determined by the County Public Service Board.
- Cessation of office
- 10. The Village Administrator may be removed from office on the following grounds
  - a) failure to effectively discharge the designated functions of the office; or
  - b) is guilty of gross misconduct: or
  - c) is an adjudged bankrupt; or
  - d) inefficiency of in breach of terms of his or her

Embu County Village Administration Bill, 2018 appointment;

e) has rendered a resignation in writing to the appointing authority.

Village council

11. There shall be established in each County village a village council which shall consist of the village administrator and not less than three and not more than five village elders appointed by the Village Administrator with the approval of the County Assembly, taking into account gender balance as provided in Article (81)b of the Constitution, with the Village Administrator as the chairperson.

Qualifications of council member

12. A person shall be eligible for appointment as a council member if the person-

(a) is a citizen of Kenya;

- (b) has been a resident of or has been the owner of property in the respective village unit for a continuous period of not less than five years prior to the appointment date;
- (c) meets the requirements of Chapter Six of the Constitution;
- (d) is not disqualified for appointment to office by the County Government Act or any other law.

Functions of the council

- 13. The Village councils shall be responsible for-
  - (i) coordinating and ensuring citizen participation in the County governance;
  - (ii) assisting the respective village to develop administrative capacity for the effective exercise of function and powers;
  - (iii) monitoring the implementation of policies and programs at the village level;
  - (iv) ensuring that all inhabitants of the village are given equal treatment and fair share in all respects including welfare and socio-economic development;
  - (v) providing local information as may be required by the County Government or any other authority through Executive Committee;
  - (vi) advising the ward administrator on the matters pertaining to the village; and
  - (vii) any other function as may delegated by the ward administrator.

Remuneration

Emily H

SMH L

14. A council member shall be paid such allowance as shall be determined and advised from time to time by the Salaries and Remuneration Commission

Meetings of the council

- 15. (1) A Village Council shall hold their sittings at such places within the Village as shall be determined by the Village Administrator.
  - (2) The sittings of the Village Council shall be open and easily accessible to the public unless owing to the nature of the matter and for reasons to be recorded, it has become necessary to exclude the public.
  - (3) The meetings of Village Council shall be chaired by the village administrator and in his or her absence, a member of the council present at the meeting.
  - (4) The quorum at the sitting of the Village Council shall be two third of the members.
  - (5) The Village Council shall, at the beginning of every month, prepare schedules of their sittings specifying the time and the venues and publicize the same through the notices, posters and any other media that shall be accessible to the public at least three days prior to the first sitting of each month.
  - (6) A Village Council shall, at its first sitting elect one of their number to serve as Secretary for purposes of keeping records of the business of the Village Council.
  - (7) A Village Council shall hold at least one sitting in every month but, unless for special reasons, not more than three sittings in a month for which only two of them shall be paid allowances.
  - (8) The decisions of a Village Council shall be by consensus and where a vote becomes necessary, by a simple majority.
  - (9) The proceedings of the Village Council shall be recorded in writing and may be electronically recorded as well.
  - 16. (1) The County Executive Committee Member responsible for Public Service and Administration may make regulations for the better carrying out of the provisions of this Act.
    - (2) Without prejudice to the generality of subsection(1), the regulations shall provide for the boundaries of the Village Units in line with the requirements of the Constitution, County Governments Act and this Act.

Regulations

## LIST OF VILLAGES (Section 4)

IAME OF SUB	NAME OF WARD	NAMES OF VILLAGES
MANYATTA	NGINDA	NGUVIU
		RUGUMU
		MUVORI
		KIBUGU
		GICERORI
		NGERWE
	RUGURU/NGANDORI	KAMVIU
		RIANJAGI
		MANYATTA
14 Pull 101, 2515		KARIARI
A TANK		KIRIGI
		KIRIARI
		MUKURIA
		KIAMWIJA
		KITHUNGURIRI
		KATHANGARI
		KAIRURI
		MUKANGU
		KITHUNGURURU
	KITHIMU	KITHIMU
		ENA WEST
		KITHEGI
	GATURI SOUTH	NEMBURE
		GATUNDURI
		ENA EAST
	MBETI NORTH	KIANGIMA
		ITABUA
		GATITURI
KIRIMARI	MUNICIPALITY EAST	
		MUNICIPALITY WEST
		NJUKIRI
		KAMIU/MAJIMBO
		NTHAMBO
RUNYENJES	CENTRAL	KIGAA
		GICHICHE
		MWENENDEGA

		MBIRURI
		GITARE
ŀ		GIKUURI
	KAGAARI SOUTH	NTHAGAIYA
	KAGAANI SOOTI	KAWANJARA
		MARANGA
		GICHERA
		KIRINGA
	GATURI NORTH	MAKENGI
	GATOM NOM	KEVOTE
		KIANJUKI
		KAVUTIRI
		ITONGURU
	KAGAARI NORTH	MUKUURI
	KAGAAKI NOKIII	KANJA SOUTH
		NDUURI
		KANJA NORTH
		MUGUI
		KIANJOKOMA
		KAMUGERE
		MBUINJERU
	KYENI SOUTH	KIGUMO
	KYENI SOOTH	MUKURIA
		KARURUMO
		KASAFARI
		KARIRU
		KATHUNGURI
		KATHONGON
		NYAGARI
	WYENI NORTH	IRIARI
	KYENI NORTH	KIANGUNGI
		KATHARI
	MAVURIA	MAVURIA
MBEERE SOUTH	IVIAVORIA	KOMBOMUNYIRI
		KITHUNTHIRI
		GACEGETHUIRI
		GICHICHE
		NJIGO
		NYANGWA
		GIKIIRO
	MANAGERE	KIAMBERE
	KIAMBERE	NTHARAWE
		INTRANAVE

0

\* 555

		KINDARUMA
		GACABARI
	MAKIMA	MAKIMA
		MWEA GRAZING
		MBONDONI
	MWEA	KARABA
		WACHORO
		RIAKANAU
		GATEGI
	MBETI SOUTH	KIAMURINGA
		GACHOKA
		GACHIRIRI
		MBITA
		KIRIMA
MBEERE NORTH		SIAKAGO
		KUNE
		THUURA
		KWANWAMBOGO
		MUCHONOKE
		GITIBURI
		RIANDU
	NTHAWA	MUNGAO
		CIERIA
		MUTITI
		KIRIE
		NGUTHI
		KIVUE
		GANGARA
		KARAMBARI
	MUMINJI	ITIIRA
		NGOCE
		IRIA ITUNE
		THAMBU
		KYENIRE
		KARIRU
		KATHERA
		NGARA
		KAMWAMBIA
		RWIRIA
		NGUTHI
		EVURORI
	EVURORI	CIANGERA

KAMUMU
MUTINGARI
NDENDERU
MUTHANTHARA

POR TOUR COUNTY ASSEMBLY OF EMBU

REPORT OF EMBU

RECORD ASSEMBLY: FIRST SESSION

REPORT OF SECTORAL COMMITTEE ON ADMINISTRATION AND PUBLIC SERVICE ON:

PETITION TO THE COUNTY ASSEMBLY

BY FORMER STAFF OF THE DEFUNCT EMBU MUNICIPAL COUNCIL ON UNPAID SALARIES

Clerk's Office County Assembly of Embu P. O. Box 140-60100 EMBU

C.C. de directions